NSOC RFP – NNJ0130809R – Amendment 2


Final Request for Proposal (RFP)

Neutral Buoyancy Laboratory (NBL) Space Vehicle Mockup Facility (SVMF) Operations Contract (NSOC)
 Questions and Answers
Note:

This document answers questions received via the NSOC website.  Only those questions received by the deadline stated in the Final RFP were addressed.  Similar questions have been consolidated to form one question.

Question 1:  

In reference to the "NBL Maintenance Plan," how were the listed maintenance periods determined?  Was an analysis performed in order to determine the various periods (annual, weekly, quarterly, etc.), if so will the Government please provide these analyses?
Answer 1:  

The maintenance periods are based on manufacturer's recommended schedules and have been modified from experience in operating the equipment.  For in-house designed hardware/systems, the maintenance schedules were initially determined by an engineer and then modified from experience in operating the hardware/systems.  A documented analysis was not performed to determine the various maintenance periods, and as such can not be provided. 
Question 2: 

Can the Government provide annual historical data on preventive and corrective maintenance activities for the NBL Critical Systems?
Answer 2:  

The preventive maintenance schedules for the critical systems are provided in the 'nblimaint' database.  The corrective maintenance that was done outside of the preventive maintenance cycles can be found in the System Entry Control (SEC) documents in the technical library.  This SEC data is located in the same location as the Flight drawings.  Directions to obtain access to the iMaint data and SEC documentation are provided in the technical library.
Question 3:  

Please clarify the requirement for WBS reporting in reference to "TA3, NBL Critical Systems Sustaining Engineering."
Answer 3:  

The approach for TA3, NBL Critical Systems Sustaining Engineering should be provided in terms of WBS Element 2.3.2 Systems Sustaining Engineering and Maintenance.
Question 4:  

Is i-Maint used as an NSOC Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS)?  Is it also used by the JSC Facility contractor on NBL and SVMF facilities? Is it considered NASA property, and if so, will it be available to the successful NSOC bidder?  If not, are we expected to propose our own CMMS approach?
Answer 4:  

i-Maint is used at the NBL (nblimaint) as a maintenance tracking tool.  The SVMF does not use i-Maint as a maintenance tracking tool.  No, the JSC Center Operations contractor does not use i-Maint.  Yes, it is NASA property and will be made available for the successful NSOC bidder.
Question 5:  

Is the cross-reference table required for the Past Performance volume included in the volume page count?
Answer 5:  

The cross reference table is part of the Past Performance volume and, as such, is included in the 50-page limit.
Question 6:  

Does the Government expect TA5 to contain separate BOE sheets (3.5, 3.5.1 and 3.5.2) specific to the sample delivery Order?  

Answer 6:  

Yes, there should be separate BOE sheets.
Question 7:  

Please clarify the exact content required for submission within "Volume IV, Completed Model Contract, Reps/Certs and Other Plans."  Specifically, what "Other Plans" are required to be submitted with this Volume?
Answer 7:  

"Other Plans" to be submitted are detailed in Provision L.19 of the Request for Proposal (RFP), and include the Small Business Subcontracting Plan, Safety and Health Plan, Continuous Improvement Plan, External Customers Plan, OCI Avoidance Plan, Phase-in Plan, and Contractor Quality Plan.
Question 8:  

The rollup Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) elements will consume a portion of the available 75 pages for Appendix A.  Will the Government consider either increasing the page count or removing these rollup WBS elements from Appendix A?
Answer 8:  

No, the page limitation is intended to allow Offerors the flexibility to propose and explain WBS elements in the detail they see fit.  The 75-page limitation allows Offerors to use multiple pages for some WBS elements, while other WBS elements may only use one page.

Question 9:  

In reference to the requirement for Offerors to "provide a summary of each company's work-related injuries and illnesses, following the format of OSHA Form 300A," does the Government want a copy of Form 300A or would the Government accept the same information formatted to fit a single page? Further, will the Government consider excluding these safety forms from the page count?
Answer 9:  

The Government will accept the information following the format of the 300A, and the decision for formatting to a specific number of pages will be left to the contractor.  It will not be excluded from the page limitation.
Question 10:  

Please identify the "pertinent DRD(s)" referenced in Statement of Work section 2.1(e), "Other business management and administrative reports, such as financial planning, historical information, technical support information, and budget impacts of proposed changes, as required in any pertinent DRD."
Answer 10:  

The offeror shall review all DRDs and determine which of them are pertinent to this requirement.
Question 11: 

Please define "rental receipts" as referenced in clause H.17, "the Government recognizes the benefit it derives from the contractor's non-Government use of designated property through rental receipts as defined under the FRA."
Answer 11:  

Rental receipts are money paid to the Government by the contractor for use of the designated asset.
Question 12:  

Please clarify which Completion Form/Cost Reimbursable CY 1-5 Non-Labor Resources (NLR) Independent Government Estimate (IGE) table (Table 2) is to be used.
Answer 12:  

The NLR IGE (Table 2) provided within Amendment 1, Section L Change Page should be used.
Question 13:  

Please clarify the Johnson Engineering Co. (JEC) reference in Paragraphs 5.6.1, 5.7.1, 5.8.8, 5.9.1, and 5.11.0, the Wire Harness sections of the MDRD. Should the offeror assume JEC is designing and installing all powered cabling?
Answer 13:  

The offeror shall assume that all work referenced as being conducted by JEC in the MDRD will be performed by the NSOC contractor.
Question 14:  

In reference to Provision L.19, requirements for TA4; is this section intended to define the Offeror’s Change Request process and provide a step-by-step procedure for initiating and submitting a Change Request, or is it intended to include execution and delivery of a Change Request from planning to execution to closure?  
Answer 14:  

The Offeror's response to TA4 is intended to address all phases of the change process (for both Change Requests and Delivery Orders), from change conception through execution and delivery.
Question 15:  

In reference to Provision L.19, requirements for TA4; the DRD associated with TA4 seems to be focused on the process of the Change Request itself rather than on the actions required to execute and deliver the Change Request.  Please clarify.

Answer 15:  

The DRD associated with TA4, which contains elements related to change implementation and execution, is intended to document the Offeror’s proposed change processes in detail (for both Change Requests and Delivery Orders), and how those processes will support and interface with NASA's documented processes.
Question 16:  

In reference to Provision L.19, requirements for TA4; please clarify if Delivery Orders should have their own discrete process?

Answer 16:  

It is left to the Offeror to recommend whether Delivery Orders should have their own discrete process, based on the Offeror’s technical approach and prior experience.
Question 17:  

Have Failure Mode and Effect Analyses (FMEA) been applied to the NBL critical systems? If so, will the results be made available to the NSOC bidders?
Answer 17:  

Yes, the FMEA's for the critical systems have been added to the technical library.
Question 18:  

Please verify that the Wage Determination provided in Attachment J-17 is accurate and reflects the most current Wage Determination available.
Answer 18:  

Attachment J-17 has been updated to reflect the 2005-2516, Rev. 11 Wage Determination, dated 07/22/2009.
Question 19:  

In reference to Attachment L-09, “Sample IDIQ Delivery Order;” the Fidelity Matrix does not match corresponding text sections.  Please clarify which fidelity information should be used.
Answer 19:  

In the event that a conflict arises between the Fidelity Matrix and the Body Text, the fidelity information provided in the Body Text shall take precedence.
Question 20:  

In reference to Attachment L-09, “Sample IDIQ Delivery Order;” Casters are mentioned as items in section 4.2.1 requiring certification and in section 6.4 needing Certification of Compliance.  For the Sample IDIQ BOE, are Casters required to move the sample payload mockup without performing a lifting operation?
Answer 20: 

Yes, the casters are required to move the mockup without performing a lifting operation.
Question 21:  

Attachment J-14 indicates that space for approximately 120 contractor personnel is available on-site. Please confirm that all proposed contractor personnel in excess of the 120 NSOC personnel referenced in Attachment J-14 would have to be housed off-site at contractor facilities?
Answer 21:  

Yes, any additional NSOC personnel in excess of that stated in Attachment J-14 would need to be housed off-site
Question 22:  

Reference Section L.18, page L.9, paragraph (c), Completed Cognizant Audit Office Templates: The instructions indicate that these completed forms are due with the Past Performance Questionnaires. We interpret this to mean that the CAOT forms are due to the Government on the same date as the Past Performance volume (February 26th) and not literally submitted with the questionnaires as these will be coming directly from the respective clients for the referenced contracts.  Are these to be submitted separately from the PP volume or as part of the PP Volume? Please provide clarification on how these forms are to be submitted to the Government.
Answer 22:  

The Completed Cognizant Audit Office Templates are due on the same date as the Past Performance Volume (however are not included as part of this volume).  They are also to be submitted a second time as part of the Cost Volume.
Question 23:  

Reference Technical Reference Library Document, NBL/LMF Maintenance Policy SC12-POL-006; in section 3.8 of this document “Integration Engineering Team,” which is on page 5 of the procedure; it states, “The maintenance tasks to be performed and the processes and procedures to be followed are specified in NBL Mockup Hardware Maintenance and Inspection Process, NBL-ENG-W0158.”  Can a copy of NBL-ENG-W0158 be posted in the Technical Reference Library?
Answer 23:  

A copy of NBL-ENG-W0158 has been posted to the Technical Reference Library.
Question 24:  

Reference Section L.8, page L.3, paragraph (b); the requirement to use a sans serif font not smaller than 12 point type is clearly stated.  Is the use of a narrow font acceptable?
Answer 24:  

No, the use of a narrow font is not acceptable.
Question 25:  

Reference Attachment L-08, SVMF Facility Utilization Request; on page 2 of the FUR, there is a statement concerning a laptop to "be configured to control the remote [MB]."  On page 3 the FUR calls out "Lo-Fi [MB]". On the last page, the FUR lists "Remote MB Laptop".  Please define what the acronym MB stands for.
Answer 25:  

MB is a Russian acronym for a portable atmospheric pressure gauge for use in the ISS.  The SVMF maintains a remotely controllable mockup of the gauge.
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